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I ndependent Auditors' Report

To the Members of
lntermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of lntermetal Engineers (lndia)
Private Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2020,
the statement of profit and loss, statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
"financial statements").

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 ('the Act') in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the lndian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("lnd AS") or other
accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at 31 March2020, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing ("SAs") specified under Section 143 (10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those SAs are further described in the Auditors'Responsrb ility for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of lndia ("lCAl") together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the lCAl's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

porting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the
any as it is an unlisted company
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lndependent Auditors' Report (Continued)

lntermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited

lnformation other than the Financia! Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures
to Board's Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditors' report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otheruvise appears to be materially misstated. lf, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
reporl that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsi bility for the Fi nancial Statements

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated
in Section 134 (5) of the Act, with respect to the preparation of these financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position , financial performance including other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with lnd AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in lndia This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Board
process.

of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting



I ndependent Aud itors' Report (Conti n u ed)

lntermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited

Auditors' Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue

an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of

assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will

always detect a materialhisstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud

or eiror and are considered material if, individuatly or in the aggregate, they could

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professionaljudgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and per-form audit procedures responsive to

those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting

from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control'

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3Xi)

of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the

Company has adequate internalfinancial controls system in place and the operating

effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness

of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis

of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on

the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. lf we conclude that a material

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the

related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,

to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up

to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause

the Company to cease to continue as a going concern'

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

ftR
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Independent Auditors' Report (Continued)

lntermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited

Auditors' Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually

or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably

knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and

in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified

misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied

with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them

all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors'

report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in

extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in

our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected

to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ('the Order'), issued by

the Central Government of lndia in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in

"Annexure A", a statement on the matters specified in the paragraphs 3 and 4 of the

Order, to the extent aPPlicable.
2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) we have sought and obtalned all the information and explanations, which to the

best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

company so far as it appears from our examinatlon of those books;

(c) the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive

income, statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement dealt with by

this report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the lnd AS

prescribed under Section 133 of the Act;

on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on

31 March 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is

disqualified as on 31 March 2O2O from being appointed as a director in terms of

Section 164 (2) of the Act; and

(e)
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Independent Auditors' Report (Continued)

lntermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Continued)

(0 with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in "Annexure 8". Our report expresses an unmodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal
financial controls over financial reporting.

(S) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors' Report under Section
1e7(16):

ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in

accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid

to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as

amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us.
i. the Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its

financial position;
ii. the Company did not have any long{erm contracts, including derivative

contracts, for which there were any material foreseeable losses;
iii. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the lnvestor

Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31

March 2020.

For Saini Pati Shah & Co LLP
(formerlyknown asSGJ & CO)

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 137904W //100622

*il^ 'l'
Som Nath Saini

Partner
Mumbai, June 25,2020 Membership No. 093079
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lntermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited

Annexure A to the lndependent Auditors' Report - 31 March 2020
With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the lndependent Auditors' Report to the
members of the Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020,
we report the following:

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its
property, plant and equipment by which property, plant and equipment are
verified by the management annually. ln our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its assets. ln accordance with the policy, the Company has
physically verified property, plant and equipment during the year and we are
informed that no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of
immovable properties as disclosed in the flnancial statements, are held in
the name of the Company.

(ii) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. ln
our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable. We are informed that
the discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book
records were not material.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189
of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'). Accordingly, paragraphs 3 (iii) (a), (b) and
(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iv) ln our opinion, and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
Company has not granted any loans, or provided any guarantees or security to the
parties covered under Section 185 of the Act. According to the information and
explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 186 of the Act in respect of the
loans given, guarantees given, securities provided or investments made during the
year are not applicable to the Company.

(v) ln our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted deposits as per the directives issued by the Reserve
Bank of lndia and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions
of the Act and the rules framed thereunder. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (v) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) To the best of our knowledge and as explained to us, the Central Government has
not specified the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for
the business activities carried out by the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(vi) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ffi



lntermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited
Annexure A to the lndependent Auditors' Report - 31 March 2020 (Continued)

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued
in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including
lncometax, Provident fund, Employees' State lnsurance, Profession tax,
Goods and Services tax, Cess and other material statutory dues have been
regularly deposited during the year with the appropriate authorities though
there has been delays in few instances. As explained to us, the Company did
not have any dues on account of wealth tax.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of lncome-tax, Provident fund, Employees' State
lnsurance, Profession tax, Goods and Services tax, Cess and other material
statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2020'tor a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues
of lncome-tax, Sales tax, Service tax, Value added tax and Goods and
Services tax as at 31 March2020, which have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute,

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company did not have any
outstanding dues to banks, financial institutions, government and debenture holders
during the year.

(ix) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not raised any
moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) and has not obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company,
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in lndia,
and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither
come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company by
its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been
informed of any such case by the Management.

(xi) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has paid / provided for
managerial remuneration in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act.

(xii) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are
in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of
such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by
applicable lnd AS.

(b)

,/,. .')
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lntermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited

Annexure A to the lndependent Auditors' Report - 31 March 2020 (Continued)

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xiv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank
of lndia Act, 1934, Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

For Saini Pati Shah & Co LLP
(formerlyknown asSGJ & CO)

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 137904W /t/100622

Mumbai, June 25,2020
fl'-,m #.G,r,,,
VN:Z,# Membership No: oe3o7e
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lntermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited

Annexure B to the lndependent Auditors' Report - 31 March 2020

Report on the lnternal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act")
(Referred to in paragraph (2)(f) under'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements'
section of our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
lntermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited ("the Company") as of 31 March 2020 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

ln our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2020, based on the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered
Accountants of lndia ("the Guidance Note").

Management's Responsibility for lnternal Financial Controls

The Company's management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal controls with reference to
financial statements criteria establlshed by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

A uditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
respect to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10)
of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

L, t,
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lntermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited

Annexure B to the lndependent Auditors' Report - 31 March 2020 (Continued)

A ud itors' Responsi bility (Co nti n ued)

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of

the internal financial controls system with respect to flnancial statements and their operating

effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with respect to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with respect to financial

statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating

the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
proceduies selected depend on the auditors' judgement, including the assessment of the

risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with

reference to financial statements.

Meaning of lnternal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process

designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and

the freparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to

financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the

maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial

statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts

and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations

of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance

regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of

the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

lnherent Limitations of lnternal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial

statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of

controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,

projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial

staiements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with

reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For Saini Pati Shah & Co LLP
(formerly known as S G J & CO)

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 137904W //100622

,tJt"t'
Som Nath Saini

Padnerffif;$,,}
w,ryMumbai, June 25,2020 Membership No: 093079
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lntermeta! Engineers (lndia) Private Limited
(AIl amounts are in lNRlakhs, unless otherwise stateil)

Balance sheet as at 31 March 2020

P:riiluliI!:

ASSfiS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Financial assets

Other financial assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets

lnventories

Financial assets

lnvestments

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Sank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above

Loans

Other financial assets

Current tax assets (net)

Other current assets

Total current assets

Total assets

EQUIW AND LIABITITIES

Equity

Equity share capital

Other equity

Total equity

tiabilities
Non-current liabilities
Deferredtax liabilities (net)

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Trade payables

- Total outstanding dues of micro, small and medium enterprises

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro, small and medium

enterprises
Other fi nancial liabilities

Other current liabilities

current tax liabilities (net)

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total and liabilities

Summary of significant accounting policies

Notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Saini Pati Shah & Co tLP

(Jormerly known as s G J & CO)

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. l379o4w /w f00622

3

For and on behalf of the board of directors

lntermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited

438.63

22.40

530.12

23.83

101.86

1.53

7,,2.39

1.88

\o7r.49
1,073.37

47.9?

oi.n,

11.89

24.O3

2.22

)h r"
Som Saini

Partner

Membership No.093079

UO l,f, t-2oo93o+{ gAAAAx6q3+
Place: Mumbai

Date: 25 iune 2020

Place: Gurugram

oate: 25 June 2020

39.72

16.58

492.76

100.00

7.47

0.76

22.70

74.79

22.05

531.45

8.19

!7.47

66.79

7.27

2.59

8.82

28.53

29.68

20.26

6.6s

14.50

2.6s

Pi}(mod Saga-l vijay Sharma

Diredi6T

7

8

9

10

11

t2
13
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lntermetal Engineers (tndia) Private Limited
(All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2020

Summary of significant accounting policies

Notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

3

For and on behalf of the board of directors

lntermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited
As per our report of even date

For Saini Pati Shah & co LIP

(formerly known os S G J & CO)

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 137904VW100622

)frk ,{"-:":I
Company Secretary

ACS:10805

Director

DIN:06500871

Som Saini

Partner

Membership No.093079

L, D I $f r- 2ooQ JoJlAnicA A'x 6q3 +
Place: Mumbai

Date: 25 June 2020

Pbnicula* Note llo, Foi thb iear endei
.t,si ililntr-oit

rorttrlygila{
31Maichrzolg

Revenue

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total revenue

Expenses

Cost of materials consumed

Changes in inventory of finished goods and work-in-progress

Employee benefits expenses

Depreciation and amortization expense

Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit before tax

Tax expense:

- Current tax
- Adjustment in respect of current tax of prevlous years

- Deferred tax
Total tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to the statement of the

profit and loss

- Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans

- lncome tax relating to the above

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Basic and diluted share (face value of Rs 100

22

23

24

25

26

4

27

35

416.24

14.54

472.18

53.18

430.78 455.36

241.29
(3.2s1

66.17

17.79

48.33

224.99

DA37
18.33

30.00

370.33

60.45

28.70

0.s8
t16.s7)

63,57

9.83

0.73

1.72

401.59

L2,TL 12.28

48.34 51.39

48.34 51.39

3,026.85 LO8.22

Pal gat

U;*{,,,n-*
Vijay Sharma

Director

DIN:00880113

Place: Gurugram

Date: 25 June 2020
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tntermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited
(All amounts are in lNRlakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Cash ftow statement for the year ended 31 March 2020

Partlculars For if1grear,eq!!d
Sf March:?qlf

Foithe year ended 3i
Maiah 2019

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax for the year

Adjustments:
Depreciation and amortization

Allowance for expected credit loss

Sundry balances written back

Provision no longer required written back

Net gain on disposal off mutual fund units

lnterest income

Net loss (gain) on financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment

Dividend income

Operating cash flows before working capital changes

Working capital movements:

lncrease / (Decrease) in trade payables

lncrease / (Decrease) in other financial liabilities

lncrease / (Decrease) in other current liabilities

(lncrease) / Decrease in inventories

(lncrease) / Decrease in trade receivables

(lncrease) / Decrease in loans

(lncrease) / Decrease in other current assets

Cash generated from operation
lncome taxes paid, net

Net cash flows generated from operating activities (A)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of mutual fund units

Proceeds from redemption of of mutual fund units

(lnvestment) / withdrawal of fixed deposit (net)

Dividend received

lnterest received

Net cash flows generated from investing activities (B)

Cash flows from financing activities

Payment towards buyback of shares at premium

Payment of approved dividend

Payment of dividend distribution tax

Net cash flows (used) in / generated from financing activities (C)

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Notes to cash flow statement
Component of cosh and cash equivolents

Cash on hand

Balances with banks

- ln current accounts

- ln fixed deposit accounts (with original maturity of less than 3 months)

Total cash and cash equivalents

60.45

Lt.79
4.33

(10.65)

4.28

(1.67)
(2.1s)

63.67

18.33

(s.30)

(s.82)

(12.08)

(6.02)

(1s.33)

72.37

2.42

(16.1s)

0.23

lt7.66l
(t2.721

(0.14)

13.75

29.!2

5.85

10.91

(s.76)

0.35

2L.45

o.27

4.t2

42.10

(30.ss)

63.29

,19.30)

11.15 43.99

(46.10)

t.70

527.L7

(33.21)

2.L5

L2.49

(1.ss)

(20.00)

50.08

27.60

4.33

3.43

464.20 63.89

(180.83)

(s.s6)
(1.9s)

475.35

17.4t

(84.4s)

101.86

492.76 17.41

0.51

51.75

440.50

0.09

L7.-32

492.16 ,7.41



lntermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited
(All amounts are in lNRlakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2020 (Continued)

Notes:

1 The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in lnd AS 7 statement of cash flows u/s 133 of Companies

Act, 2013 ('Act,) read with Rule 4 ofthe companies (lndian Accounting standards) Rules 2015 and the relevant provisions ofthe Act.

2 Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows from fi nancing activities

Particulais

Opening balance

a. Fair value changes

b. Changes from financing cash flows

Arising on appropriation from retained earning

Payments made

balance

As per our report of even date

For Saini Pati Shah & Co ILP

(formerly known as S G J & CO)

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 137904W /wtOO522

k+k

Forthe year'endtd'lt

., : ar,qll.,g[I9

192.33

.33

For and on behalf of the board of directors

lntermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited

\ U;*, /,.*
lr^ ^ ,--L-'-4 \----1"^-

,{W*{"p",er'.,a*"!J rffi+"-J vijaysharmaSom Saini

Partner

Membership No.093079
uDJ,,.' r-2so9 3o+a {\AAAAX6q3:l

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25 June 2020

Company Secretary Director
ACS:10805 DIN:06500871

Director

DIN:00880113

Place: Gurugram

Date: 25 June 2020



lntermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited
(All amounts are in lNRlakhs, unless otherwise stateil)

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2020

A. Equity share capital

fi

{\-
- 

t"i,'

I:t

Pa*lcularu
, Asal

31 Marth 102(
, ... toil

sfMarafi zotg

As at
o1 Aprii 10i8

Outstanding as at the beginning of the year

Add: Share issued during the Year

Less: Share bought back during the year

Outstanding as at the end of the year

1.60 1.88

(0.28)

1.88

1,50 1.50 1.88

Other equi
Prrticularc, capltal redf,Ilpiioll

resew€

Retailed eamingt roial

Balance as at 1 April 2018 - Previous GAAP

lnd-AS transtion imPact:

Fair valuation of mutual fund units

Fair valuation of property, plant and equipment

Allowance for expected credit loss

Elimination of proposed dividend and dividend distribution tax

Balance as at 1 April 2018 - Restated under lnd AS

Profit for the year

Transfer to capital redemption reserve for buyback of shares

Payment for buyback of shares at premium

Dividend approved during the year for FY 2077-78

Dividend distribution tax paid on dividend apporved lot FY 2077-78

Balance as at 31 March 2019

Profit for the year

Balance as at 31 March 2020

0.63 7L6.72

29.40

317.58

(6.041

13.20

7t7.35

29.40

317.58

(6.04)

13.20

0.63 1,070.86 t,o71,49

0.28

.3951

(0.28)

(180.ss)

(e.s6)

(1.es)

51.39

(180.ss)

(s.s6)
(1.es)

0,91 929.91 930.82

48.34

0.91 978.25 979.16
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lntermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited
(All amounts are in INRlakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2020

l. Corporatelnformation
tntermetal Engineers (lndia) private Limited ('the Company') is domiciled and incorporated in lndia under the provisions of lndian

Companies Act. The registered office of the Company is situated at 337, Gundecha lndustrial Complex, Akurli Road, Near Grovers Well

Co, Kandivali (East), Mumbai - 400101. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing and sale of slide gate

mechanics and related components.

2. Statement of compliance and basis of preparation and presentation

2.2

Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the lndian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) as per the

Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 20L3

("the Act") and in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in lndia and other relevant provisions of the Act.

For all periods up to and inctuding the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance

with the generally accepted accounting principles in lndia (lndian GAAP) underthe historical cost convention as a golng concern

and on accrual basis, unless otherwise stated, and in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,2013, the

Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 (as

amended), collectively referred as "Previous GAAP".

These are the first financial statements of the Company prepared in accordance with lnd AS. Accordingly, lnd AS 101, First-time

Adoption of lndian Accounting Standards has been applied. Refer note 34 for an explanation of how the transition from

Previous GAAP to lnd AS has affected the previously reported financial position, financial performance, company's total equity,

total comprehensive income and cash flow of the company.

These financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 are approved by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 25

June 2020.

Basis of preparation and measurement
These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost convention except for certain

financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period (refer accounting policy regarding

financial instruments, refer note 3.10).

Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between

market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using

another valuation technique, ln estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the

characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the

asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements

is determined on such a basis, except for measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as

net realisable value in lnd AS 2 or value in use in lnd AS 36.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to

measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair

value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1- Quoted (Unadjusted) marked prices in the active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or

indirectly observa ble.

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.
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lntermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited
(All amounts are in INRlakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2020

2,3 Current Versus non-current classification
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other
criteria set out in the Schedule lll to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between the

acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its

operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current - non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

2.4 New and amended standards adopted by the Company
The Company has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for their annual reporting period

commencing 1 April 2019:
r Ind AS 116, Leases

. Uncertainty over lncome tax treatments - Appendix C to lnd AS 12, lncome Taxes

r Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement - Amendments to lnd AS 19, Employee Benefits
o Amendment to lnd AS 12, lncome Taxes
o Amendment to lnd AS 23, Borrowing costs
o Amendments to lnd AS 109

The Company has changed its accounting policies as a result of adopting lnd AS 116. Refer note 3.77 for the details of change in

accounting policy. The other amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and

are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

2.5 Standards issued but not yet effective:
Certain new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are not yet effective for annual period beginning after
April 1, 2019 and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements, The new standards and amendments to
standards are proposed to be effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2020. The Company intends to adopt

these standards and amendments when they became effective.

The Standards that are issued, but not yet effective, are disclosed below:

lssuance of new standard

tnd AS 117 - lnsuronce Contracts
lnd AS 117 supersedes lnd AS 104 lnsurance contracts. lt establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement,

presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts within the scope of the standard. Under the lnd AS 117 model,

insurance contract liabilities will be calculated as the present value of future insurance cash flows with a provision for
risk.

Application of this standard is not expected to have any significant impact on the Company's financial statements.

Amendments to existing standards

Ministry of Corporate Affairs has carried out amendments of the following accounting standards:

lnd AS 1Oi - Business Combination

The amendment is in connection with clarification of business definition, which help in determining

whether an acquisition made is of a business or a group of assets. The amendment added a test that makes

it easier to conclude that a Company has acquired a group of assets, rather than a business, if the value of

the assets acquired is substantially all concentrated in a single asset or group of similar assets.

The adoption of amendment to lnd AS 103 is not expected to have any significant impact on the Company's

financial statements.

lnd AS 7. Presentotion of Finonciol Stotements and lnd AS 8. Accountina Policies. Chonqes in Accountinq

Estimotes ond Errors

A.

B.

(i)
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lntermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited
(All amounts are in INRlakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2020

The amendment is in connection with refinements to the definition of 'Material'and aligns this definition
with other lnd AS. These refinements are intended to make the definition easier to understand and are not
intended to alter the concept of materiality in lnd AS. The amended definition states that information is

material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general-purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements,
which provide financial information about a specific reporting entity.

The adoption of amendment to lnd AS 1 and lnd AS 8 is not expected to have any significant impact on the
Compa ny's financial statements.

lnd AS 40 - lnvestment Propertv

lnd AS 40 states that an investment property shall be measured initially at cost and for measurement after
recognition, cost model shall be adopted for all the investment property. The amendment is in connection
with an addition of option to measure all investment property after recognition as per fair value model.
However, the amendment also gives an exception which states that an entity may:

(a) choose either the fair value model or the cost model for all investment property backing liabilities that
pay a return linked directly to the fair value of, or returns from, specified assets including that
investment property; and

(b) choose either the fair value model or the cost model for all other investment property, regardless of
the choice made in (a).

The adoption of amendment to lnd AS 40 is not expected to have any significant impact on the Company's
financialstatements.

2.6 Critical accounting judgements and use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the results of operations during the reporting period. The actual results could differ from those estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised

in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision or future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Accounting estimates and judgements are used in various line items in the financial statements for e.g.:

Property, plant and equipment
The management engages internal technical team to assess the remaining useful lives and residual value of property, plant and

equipment annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation to be recorded during any reporting period. The

management believes that the assigned useful lives and residual value are reasonable.

lncome taxes
The management judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes and deferred tax assets and liabilities.
The Company reviews at each balance sheet date the carrying amount of deferred tax assets / liabilities. The factors used in
estimates may differ from actual outcome which could lead to significant adjustment to the amounts reported in the financial
statements.

Contingencies
The management's judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, in respect of
contingencies/claim/litigations against the Company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with
accuracy.

(iii)
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lntermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited
(All amounts are in INRlakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2020

Expected credit losses on financial assets:

The impairment provisions of financial assets and contract assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and

expected timing of collection. The Company uses judgment in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on the Company's past history of collections, customer's creditworthiness, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

lmpairment of non-financial assets
lmpairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit ("CGU") exceeds its recoverable amount, which
is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based

on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm's length, for similar assets or observable market prices

less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow ("DCF")

model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for future years and do not include restructuring activities that the
Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset's performance of the CGU

being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future
cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

lnvestment in equity shares:
The Company is exposed to equity price risk from investments in equity securities measured at fair value through profit and

loss. The Management monitors the proportion of equity securities in its investment portfolio based on market indices.

Material investments within the portfolio are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are approved by

the Board of Directors.

Effective lnterest Rate (ElR) Method:
The Company recognizes interest income / expense using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate
of return over the expected life of the loans given / taken. This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement
regarding the expected behaviour and life-cycle of the instruments, as well as expected changes to other income/expense that
are integral parts of the instrument.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes:

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active
markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation technique that include the use of valuation models. The inputs to
these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is

required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financlal instruments.

3. SignificantAccountingPolicies

3.1 Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in lndian Rupees (lNR), which is also the Company's functional currency. All amounts
have been rounded-offto the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.

3.2 Property, plant and equipment
All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes

expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on the date of disposal or retirement.

Subsequent costs are capitalised on the carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when future
economic benefits associated with the item are probable to flow to the Company and cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repair and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in which
they are incurred.

On transition to lnd AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of its property, plant and equipment
recognised as at April 7, 2OL8 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the
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lntermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited
(All amounts are in lNRlakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2020

3.5

property, plant and equipment except for freehold factory land and building which has been fair valued and considered as

deemed cost as per lnd AS 101 principles as on the date of transition.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight-line basis over the useful lives of assets as determined
on the basis of technical estimates which are similar to the useful lives as prescribed under Schedule ll to the Companies Act,
2013. Based on past experience and internal technical evaluation, the management believes that these useful lives represent
the appropriate period of usage and therefore, considered to be appropriate for charging depreciation. Depreciation on
addition (disposal) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (upto) the date on which assets is ready for use (disposed of).

Assets residual values, depreciation method and useful lives are reviewed at the end of financial year considering the physical

condition of the assets or whenever there are indicators for review and adjusts residual life prospectively.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the
statement of profit and loss within other income.

lntangible Assets

ldentifiable intangible assets are recognised when the Company controls the asset, it is probable that future economic benefits
attributed to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

At initial recognition, the separately acquired intangible assets are recognised at cost. Following initial recognition, the
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated lmpairment losses, if any.

Amortisation is recognised in statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible
assets from the date they are available for use. The amortisation period and the amortisation method are reviewed at least at
each financial year end. lf the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the
amortisation period is changed accordingly. Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as
income or expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Assets held for sale
Non-current assets, or disposal groups are classified as held for sale if its carrying amount will be recovered principally through
sale rather than through continuing use, it is available for immediate sale and sale is highly probable within one year.

On initial classification as held for sale, assets and disposal groups are measured at the lower of previous carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell with any adjustments taken to the statement of profit and loss. The same applies to gains and losses
on subsequent remeasurement although gains are not recognised in excess of any cumulative impairment loss. Any impairment
loss on a disposal group is first allocated to goodwill, and then to remaining assets and liabilities on a pro-rata basis, except that
no loss is allocated to inventories, financial assets, deferred tax assets, employee benefit assets and investment property, which
continue to be measured in accordance with the accounting policies. lntangible assets and property, plant and equipment once
classified as held for sale or distribution are not amortised or depreciated.

Foreign currency tra nslation

lnitial recognition
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange
rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Conversion
Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of
historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-
monetary items, which are measured at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency, are translated
using the exchange rate at the date when such value was determined,

Exchange differences
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting monetary items of Company at rates
different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are
recognised as income or as expenses in the year in which they arise except those arising from investments in non-integral
operations.

3.3

3.4
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tntermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited
(All amounts are in INRlakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2020

3.6 Taxes

3.7

3.8

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax.

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the

applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and

to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the

reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which

applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. lt establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts

expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of

assets and liabilities and thelr carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates

(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when

the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that

future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities

and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where

the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle

the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items

recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. ln this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity respectively.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is

no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the Statement of profit and loss as current tax. Minimum Alternative

Tax ("MAT") credit is recognised as deferred tax asset based on evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during

the specified period. Significant judgments are involved in determining the future taxable income and future book profits,

including amount of MAT credit available for set-off.

!nventories
lnventories are valued at the lower of cost (on first in first out basis in respect of trading goods and on weighted average basis

in respect of raw materials, work-in-progress and finished goods) and the net realisable value after providing for obsolescence

and other losses, where considered necessary. Cost includes all charges in bringing the goods, including freight, octroi and other

levies. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of completion

and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Stores and spares inventory is valued at cost.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contract with customers is recognized when the Company satisfies the performance obligation by transfer of

control of promised product or service to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration which the Company expects

to receive in exchange for those products or services. Control is defined as the ability to direct the use of and obtain

substantially all of the economic benefits from an asset. Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which isthe expected consideration to be received, to the extentthat it is

highly probable that there will not be a significant reversal of revenue in future periods. lf the consideration in a contract

includes a variable amount, at the inception of the contract, the Company estimates the amount of consideration to which it

will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the customer.
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lntermetal Engineers (tndia) Private Limited
(All amounts are in INRlakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2020

At the inception of the contract, the Company identifies the goods or services promised in the contract and assess which of the

promised goods or services shall be identified as separate performance obligations. Promised goods or services give rise to

separate performance obligations if they are capable of being distinct'

Revenue from the delivery of products is recognised at the point in time when control over the products is passed to the

customers, which is determined based on the individual lncoterms agreed in the customer contract.

Contract balances:

The Company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as either a receivable or as unbilled revenue. A

receivable is a right to consideration that is unconditional upon passage of time. Contract asset, which is presented as unbilled

revenue, is classified as non-financial asset as the contractual rightto consideration is dependent on completion ofcontractual

milestones.

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received

consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. lf a customer pays consideration before the Company

transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due

(whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract. Contract

liabilities include, and are presented as'Revenue received in advance'and 'Advances from customers'.

3.9 Other lncome

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive dividend is established by the reporting date. The right to

receive dividend is generally established when shareholders approve the dividend.

lnterest income
lnterest income is recognized as it accrues in the standalone statement of profit and loss using effective interest rate method'

Net gain loss on fair value change
The Company recognises gains on fair value change of financial assets measured at FWPL and realised gains on derecognition

of financial asset measured at FWPL on net basis. However, net gain / loss on derecognition of financial instruments classified

as amortised cost is presented separately underthe respective head in the statement of profit and loss.

3.10 Financial instruments:

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity

instrument of another entity.

i. Financial assets

lnitial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through

profit and loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified as:

o Debt instruments assets at amortised cost
r Equity instrument measured at fair value through profit or loss (FWPL)

When assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised entirely in the statement of profit and loss

(i.e. fair value through profit and loss), or recognised in other comprehensive income (i.e. fair value through other

comprehensive income).
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lntermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited
(All amounts are in INRlakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financiat statement for the year ended 31 March 2020

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost (net of any write down for impairment) if both the following conditions

are met:
o the asset is held to collect the contractual cash flows (rather than to sell the instrument prior to its contractual

maturity to realise its fair value changes), and

o the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest ("SPPl") on the principal amount outstanding'

such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (ElR) method' Amortised

cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part

of the ElR. The EIR amortiiation is included in finance income in the profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are

recognised statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables

Financial assets at fair value through OCI (FVTOCI)

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at fair value through ocl unless the asset is

designated at fair value through profit and loss under fair value option'

r The financial asset is held both to collect contractual cash flows and to sell'

o The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding'

lnstruments included within the F\rrOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value' Fair

value movements are recognized in oCl. However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals

and foreign exchange gain or loss in the Profit and Loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously

recognised in ocl is reclassified from the equity to profit and Loss. lnterest earned whilst holding Fwocl debt instrument is

reported as interest income using the EIR method'

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

FWPL is a residual category for company's investment instruments. Any instruments which does not meet the criteria for

categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FWPL.

All investments included within the F\rrpL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Profit and

Loss

ln addition, the company may elect to designate an instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FWOCI criteria'

as at FWPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition

inconsistency (referred to as 'accounting mismatch')'

Equity investments
All equity investments in scope of lnd AS 10g are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are

classified as at FWPL. For all other equity instruments, the company may make an irrevocable election to present in other

comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company has not made any such election' This

classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable'

lf the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding

dividends, are recognized in the ocl. There is no recycling of the amounts from oCl to P&1, even on sale of investment'

However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FWpL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L'

Equity investment in subsidiary are measured at cost'

Derecognition
When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the

received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangemenu it evaluates if and to

what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership'
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lntermeta! Engineers (lndia) Private Limited
(All amounts are in INRlakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2020

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of slmilar financial assets) is primarily

derecognised when:
o The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
o Based on above evaluation, either

(a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards ofthe asset, or
(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control of the asset.

When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control

of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing
involvement. ln that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated

liability are measured on a bases that reflect the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to
repay.

lmpairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. lnd

AS 109 ('Financial instruments') requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company

recognizes lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and / or all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing

transaction. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the l,2-month
expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset

has increased significantly since initial recognition.

ii. Financial liabilities

lnitial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss or at

amortised cost, as appropriate,

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributa ble tra nsaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade payables and other payables.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings and other payables are subsequently measured at amortised

cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as

through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an

integral part of the ElR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an

existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an

existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original

liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.
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lntermeta! Engineers (lndia) Private Limited
(All amounts are in INRlakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2020

iii. Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently

enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the

assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

iv, Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognltion, no

reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which

are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets.

Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company's senior management determines change in

the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company's operations. Such

changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases

to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. lf the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the

reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period

following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including

impairment gains or losses) or interest.

3,11 lmpairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets including Property, plant and equipment with finite life are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is

any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. lf any such indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e.

higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not
generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. ln such cases, the recoverable amount is

determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.

lf the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the

asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the standalone statement of profit and

loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. lf such indication exists, the Company estimates the

asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the

assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is

limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such

reversal is recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which

case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

3.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, cash in hand and short-term investments with an original maturity of three
months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value'

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined

above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management.

3.13 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is

probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. Provision are measured at the present value of management's best

estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. Provisions are

reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.
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tntermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited
(All amounts are in INRlakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2020

lf the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects current

market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the

passage of time is recognised as finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be

confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of

the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources

will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. lnformation on contingent liability is disclosed in

the Notes to the Financial Statements

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements. However, it is disclosed only when an inflow of economic

benefits is probable.

3.14 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the

Company will comply with required conditions. Export incentive under Merchandise Exports from lndia Scheme (MEIS) and duty

drawback are accrued when no significant uncertainties as to the amount of consideration that would be derived and as to its

ultimate collection exist.

3.15 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets,

until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

lnterest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is

deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.

3.15 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits:
All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee

benefits. All short-term employee benefits are accounted on undiscounted basis during the accounting period based on services

rendered by employees and recognized as expenses in the Statement of profit and loss. A liability is recognised for the amount

expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service

provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably. These benefits include salary and wages, bonus,

performa nce incentives, etc.

Long-term employee benefits:
The Company participates in various employee benefit plans. Post-employment benefits are classified as either defined

contribution plans or defined benefit plans.

Defined contribution plans

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund, pension fund and employees' state insurance scheme are defined

contribution schemes. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the fund. Payments to defined

contribution plan are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss when employees have rendered service

entitling them to the contributions.

Defined benefit plans

Payment of gratuity to emptoyees is covered by the "Employee's Group Gratuity Assurance Scheme" of LIC of lndia, which is a

defined benefit scheme and the company makes contribution under the said scheme.
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tntermetal Engineers (!ndia) Private Limited
(All amounts are in INRlakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2020

ln accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, the gratuity plan provides a lumpsum payment to vested employees at

retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and

the tenure of employment.

Liabilities with regard to the gratuity plan are determined on the basis of valuation given by the LIC of lndia based upon which,

the Company contributes all the ascertained liabilities to the LIC gratuity fund.

3,17 Leases

Till 31 March 2019:

As a Lessee

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Company, as lessee, has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership

are classified as finance leases, Finance leases are capitalised at the lease's inception at the fair value of the leased property or,

if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are

included in borrowings or other financial liabilities as appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and

finance cost, The finance cost is charged to the statement of profit and loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant

periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Company as lessee are

classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are

charged to the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are

structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost

increases.

Leasehold land is amortised over the period of the lease term.

With effective from l April 2019:

As a lessee

From April 7,z1tg,leases are recognised as a Right-of-Use (RoU) asset at cost with a corresponding lease liability, except for

leases with term of less than twelve months (short term) and low-value assets in accordance with lnd AS 116 'Leases''

The cost of the right-of-use assets comprises the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any lease payments

made at or before the inception date of the lease plus any initial direct costs etc.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment

losses, if any. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the

shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use assets'

For lease liabilities at the commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease

payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that

rate is readily determined, if that rate is not readily determined, the lease payments are discounted using the incremental

borrowing rate.

For short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense in the Statement of

Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term'
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lntermetal Engineers (lndial Private Limited
(All amounts are in INRlakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2020

3.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at

amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in

the statement of profit and loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or

expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to

another party and the consideratlon paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in the

statement of profit and loss as other gains/(losses).

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability

for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

3.19 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by

the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity

shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all

dilutive potential equity shares.

3.20 Trade and other PaYables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the financial year which

are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the

reporting period.

3.21 Dividends

provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorized and no longer at the discretion of

the Company, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

3.22 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision

Maker.
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lntermetal Engineers (tndia) Private Limited
(All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otheruise stated)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Unscured, consldered good:

Deposits with original maturity of more than 12 months *

* During FY 2018-19, these deposits were pre-matured.

lnventorie5
(At cost ot net rcolisdble volue whichever is loweil

Raw materials

Finished goods (including goods-in-transit of Rs 3.25 lakhs {31

March 2019: Nil,01 April 18: Nil)

lnvestment measured at falr value through profit or loss:

lnvestments in mutual fund units

lnvestment measured at amortised cost:

lnvestments in debentures or bonds

Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof

9 Cash and cash equivalents

cash on hand

Balances with banks

ln current accounts

ln fixed deposit accounts (with original maturity of less than 3 months)

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above

O"p*itlvith o,iginal maturity of more than three months but less than 12 months

11 Current loans

Unsecured, considered good:

Security deposits

Loan and advance to employees

Other loans and advances

12 Othe. currentfinancial assets

Accrued interest

Advance tax and tax deducted at source, net of provision

14 Othercurrentassets

Balances with gove.nment authorities

Advances to suppliers

Prepaid expenses

,= , Asat
0l Aprfl 20tt

:r, l" fual
01 Aprll l0l8

22._40

520.r2

r:- r;:, Aj.a!

91 April 2018,

tuit
'01AprB 10tr8

',' :::::rrr Aiat
Uri*iloia'

,], Aiaa
or rp'ttli0ii

tu.t
s1&rfl 2o1N

51.52

50.05

0.74

0.60

0.19

31.82

o.'.

Prrtlculaia
- A*a]

31 M,rch 20?[

tu81
trl March 201!

i AIat:

'0tApdilor-E

Unsecured, considered good:

Receivables from related party {Refer note 39)

Receivables from others

Trade receivables - Credit impaired

Allowance for expected credit loss

0.19

16.39 8.19

16.58

6.67
l5 67

8.19

2.33
(2.331

23.83

16.58 8.19 23.83
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lntermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited
(All amounts are in INRlakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020

15

.. , qtt
olAiIIr 2018

fartlcqla6:

Authorised:
5,OOo (31 March 2019; 5,OOo and 01 April 2018: 5,000) equity shares of Rs 10o each

lssued, subscrlbed and pald-upr

1,597 (31 March 2019: 1,597 and o1 April 2018: 1,875) equity shares of Rs. 100 each, fully paid-up

a) Reconciliatlon of the number of shar€s outstandint at the beglnning and at the end of the perlod:

Rights, preferenae and restrictions attached to the equity shares:

The Company has single class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 100 each. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. ln the event of liquidation of the

proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

List of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of a class of shares

The Company has not allotted any fully paid-up equity share by way of bonus shares, or in pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash.

The company bought back 903 number of shares in aggregate during the five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date. 625 number of shares were bought back by the

Companv on 21 February 2017 at a buy-back price of Rs 30,720 per share. 278 number of shares were bought back by the Company on 14 June 2018 at a buy-back price of Rs 65,045

per share,

Retalned €arnlngs:

Retained earnings represents surplus / accumulated earnings of the company and are available for distribution to shareholders.

Capital redemption reserve:

During financial year ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2019, the company bought back certain shares and in order to comply with the requirements of the companies Act, 2013,

the company created capital Redemption Reserye.

d)

e)

,patliulaii As.t 31Matdr 202.P As at31 Manh:20rl) As-il 0]tAPrl!2018

No: of, rhater *mount . No. ofsfiates Arnount Noi olrhares Amount

Outstanding as at the beginning of the year

Add: Share issued during the year

Less: Share bought back during the year

out(tandinp as at the end of the vear

7,5_97 1.60 1,875

{)7A'

1.88

(0.281

\a_7s 1.88

t.597 1.60 1.s97 1.60 1,875

Aa-t:31lilanh ?020 4iat3t March t019 Airtol &tllroiE
No:ofshares 96 Holding N:a, of ihares ,% H0td!r3 1.1.o. of iiie+ ::.::+ Ho-fdlrig

Equity shares of Rs 100 each fully pald-up held by

Mr. Prakash Koppar

Ms. Jayalakshmi Koppar

Mr. Anand Koppar

Ms. Aarti Koppar

M/s Orient Refractories Limited

Mr. Pramod Sasar (as nominee of Orient Refractorie

r,)vo
1

99.940/.

o.06./

7,236

233

64

64

77.40%

t4.s9%

4.O7%

4.O7"/o

1,450

275

75

77.330/0

14.67%

4.OO%

4.OO%

Partlaullrr , , Aaal
3l'Menh 202(

t):::,:: :A3al
3f'Masch 201!

, ' :43at

or#iiteors

Retained earnings

Capital redemption reserve

Retained earnlngs
Balance at the beginning of the year

Add: Profit for the year

Less: Transfer to capital redemption reserue for buyback of shares

Less: Payment for buyback of shares at premium

Less: Dividend approved during the year for FY 2017-18

Less: Dividend distribution tax paid on dividend approved for FY 2Ot7'!8

Balance at the end of the year

Capital redemption reseile
Balance at the beginning of the year

Add: Addition during the year

Balance at the end of the year

974.25

0.91

929.91

0.91

1,070.86

0.53

979.16 930.82

929.91

48.34

1,070.86

51.39

(0.28)

(180.ss)

{s.s6)
(1.s5)

1,070.85

978.25 929.9L 1,070.86

0.91 0.63

0.28

0.63

0.91 0.91 0.63

ffi$

Other



!ntermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited
(All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Total outstanding dues of micro, small and medium enterprises (Refer note 29)

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro, small and medium enterprises

19 Other current financial liabilities

Unpaid dividend

Accrued expenses

Employee dues payable

20 Other current liabilities

Contract liabilities

Statutory liabilities

21 Current tax liabilities

Provision for taxation, net of advance tax

:e;'!'
01triiit 2018

45.97

45.97

0.75

77.74

As.at
201s,

As ai
2018

20.38

3.6s

,..Its'at

QI April20IE'

.;:\

l, ,l
-tr'I

Deferred tax liabilities
PedCulea .:. : '":-,,ASat

3l Merah 2020

':l: rAS !l
31 Manh,201!

:ri r .Al at
01 ltrrll:2018

Deferred tax liabilties:
Fair valuation of investments in mutual fund units

Fair valuation of property, plant and equipment

Total deferred tax liabilities - (A)

Deferred tax assets:

Allowance for expected credit loss

Total deferred tax assets - (B)

Deferred tax liabilities (net) - (A-B)

Minimum alternate tax credit entitlement

86.O7

11.74

89.78

7.72

94.O4

86.07

7.73

101.52

0.61

707.76

2.r2
1.73

84.34

0.61

100.91
(11.26)

2.12

99.64
(77.7u

84.34 89.6s 87.93



Revenue from operations

lntermeta! Engineers (tndia) Private Limited
(All amounts are in INRlakhs, ualess otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

22 Revenue from operations

?.rtiarl ii

Revenue from contract with customers

- from related parties (Refer note 39)

- from others

Other operating revenue:

Sale of scrap

412.L8

Disagqregation of revenue:

ln the following tables, revenue is disaggregated by product group and by geography. The Company believes that this

disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of our revenues and cash flows are affected by

industry, market and other economic factors.

Timins of revenue recoqnition:

Revenue from sale of products is transferred to the customers at a point in time.

Performance obliqations

Revenue from the sale of products is recognised at the point in time when control over the products is passed to the customers,

which is determlned based on the individual lncoterms agreed in the customer contract. Control is defined as the ability to direct

the use and obtain substantially all the economic benefits from an asset.

Transaction price is the expected consideration to be received in exchange for transferring Soods or services, to the extent that it
is highly probable that there will not be a significant reversal of revenue.

Partirula* fortaeyear ended

' B1Mlich20r9

472.78

4L2.L8

f oI i!,,lie.r€-irlnded
31:Mrich 2019

Contract price

Ad,iustments for:
Claims and rebates

Performance bonus

Fcrticular,

Net gain on redemption of mutual fund units

Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

Government incentives on export

lnterest on term deposits

lnterest on bond / debentures

lnterest on loan to employees

Provision no longer required written back

Sundry balances written back

Dividend income

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment

12.08

19.33

0.22

4.98

1.04

0.08

5.82

s.30

o.r,

for:theyear ended

r..3IMar.h,lol9

For theyefl iiilei
31 Mrrch l01g

0.05

10.66

0.01

2.15

7.67

ffi

Disaqqreqation of revenue bv seoqraphv:

Other income



lntermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited
(All amounts are in lNRlakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

lnventory of materials at the beginning of the year

Add: Purchases

Less: lnventory of materials at the end of the year

and work-in-progress

(lncrease) / Decrease in inventory
lnventory at the end of the year:

Finished goods

lnventory at the beginning of the year:

Finished goods

26 Employee benefits expenses

salaries and wa8es

Contribution to provident and other funds

staff welfare expense

Foreign exchange loss (net)

Net loss on redemption of mutual fund units

Power and fuel

Rent (Refer note 31)

Legal and professional fees

Director sitting fees

Computer expenses

Repair and maintenance

Motor car expense

Postage and communication

Travelling and conveyance

lnternet charges

lnsurance

Sales promotion and advertisement expenses

Rates and taxes

Payment to auditors (Refer note 37)

Sundry balances written off
Bank charges

Printing and stationery

Freight and transport charges

Packing and forwarding expenses

Allowance for expected credit loss

office expenses

Miscellaneous expenses

ror rhe year enf,,fd
:':::3l March l0#l

22.40

224.64

247.O4

22.05

ror thgrea.i e4def
ill Marih:2019

For the year cnded
er M;rch z6is

Foithe year errdad
i 31March2019

723.52

3.70

1.15

tza.*

o.go

0.82

0.82

1.36

0.86

2.42

0.30

0.97

0.05

5.19

0.65

o.29

0.45

s.20

0.33

0.94

0.49

,l,-i

':' ,/._"/

o.02

4.24

0.88

0.64

5.44

0.75

1.11

3.84

0.15

0.69

7.57

0.19

0.08

0.03

3.34

5.07

2.77

0.15

0.58

5.18

0.31

4.33

1.30

0.28



lntermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited
(All amount are in INR lakhs, unless othetwise stateil)

Notes to the financia! statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

lncome tax

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 are:

Statement of profit and loss section

Paniculars

Current income tax:

Current income tax charge

Adjustment in respect of current tax of previous years

Deferred tax:
Relating to oriBination and reversal of temporary differences

lncome tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss

ianiculars

Accounting profit before tax

Computed tax expense

At lndia's statutory income tax rate of 27.82% (31 March 2079:26.00%l

Adjustments for:
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating income

Adjustment in respect of current tax of prevlous years

Tax impact of capital gain on redemption of mutual fund units

Minimum alternate tax credit netted off against provision for tax

Others

At the effective income tax rate ol 20.04% [31 March 2019:. L9.28%l

lncome tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss

* Minimum alternate tax credit for current year has been netted off against provision for tax.

Reflected in the balance sheet as follows

O"61arPi6:rr,r I l.l lil i I::l

Deferred tax liability

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities, net

forih; year en{ed
:, 3!,M4irh,2019,

63.67

16.55

(3.se)

0.73

0.24

(1.2s)

L2.28

r:r' ', nsat
ir Merch rorg

L2.28

(101.s2)

77.87
(89.6s)

(87.s3)

7.72

, r" :::A5 at
ir Maictr i0r9

Opening balance as ofApril 1

Tax (income) / expense durlng the period recognised in statement of profit and loss

Minimum alternate tax credit netted off against provision for tax

Closing balance (89.6s)

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the

deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by lndia's domestic tax rate for the year ended

1.33

0.s8

5.69

(11.06)

(1.2s)

L2,tL

Deferred tax relates to the following

Pa(iculnrs Balance sheet StelF..ment.qf p..rof it,.endloqs

': Asgl
3r Mirth zbl!

,= :'A$al

SliMaictrzou
, . :' r'AlAl
0l Aprll:ror$

r.olllie yJntri f
rti 31Match1202(

f.stlh;aHrert{ed
1rr:3t:Mirch 201,9.

Fair valuation of property, plant and equipment
Fair valuation of investment in mutual fund units

Allowance for expected credit loss

Minimum alternate tax credit *

(86.07)

7.73

(8s.78)

(77.74l,

0.61

77.26

(94.04

(7.72,

2.7i
71.71

3.71

17.74

L.72

4.26
(4.O21

(1.s1)

(0.4s)

Net deferred tax expense / (income) L6.57 lt.72l
Net deferred tax assets / (liabilities) (84.341 (8e.6s) (87.e3)

Reconciliation of deferred tax (liabilities) / assets, net

9.83

o.73

L.72

t2,28

7"$*:i;\.
t-/' t*l' . \t"

*1 ,rresaw/ \1
i\ w1ou62l lt
\3\ "uYZi,



lntermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited
(All dmount are ifl lNRlakhs, unlxs otherwise statetl)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

29 Dues to micro, small and medium enterprises

Parthulars

(i) Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining

as at period end

(ii) lnterest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at

end

(iii) Principal amount paid to supplier registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the

day during the year.

(iv) Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under

MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the period

(v) lnterest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the

Act, beyond the appointed day during the period

(vi) lnterest due and payabte towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for payments

already made

(vii) Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years

For the year ended
3l March 2019

.--,..t:l . ,:.

t
{L'- 'ri

tr"ffi



lntermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited
(All amount arc in INRlakhs, unless otherreise stated)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

30 segment reporting

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing slide Sate mechanics and related components. Based on the

information reported to the chief operating decision maker (CODM) for the purpose of resources' allocation and assessment of

performance, there is single business segment in accordance with the requirements of lndian Accounting Standard (lnd AS) 108 on

,Operating Segment Reporting' notified under the Companies (lndian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015.

Geographical Segments:

The analysis of geographlcal segment is based on the geographical location of the customers. The Company operates primarily in lndia

and has presence in international markets as well. lts business is accordingly aligned geographically, catering to two markets i.e. lndia and

Outside lndia. For customers located outside lndia, the Company has assessed that they carry same risk and rewards. The Company has

considered domestic and exports markets as geographical segments and accordingly disclosed these as separate segments. The

geographical segments considered for disclosure are as follows:

- Sates within lndia include sales to customers located within lndia.

- Sates outside lndia include sales to customers located outside lndia.

Secondary Segment Reporting (by Geographical Segments)

The following is the distribution of the Company's total revenue of operations by geographical market, regardless of where the Eoods

were
pifticillars

Within lndia

Outside lndia

The following tabte shows the carrying amount of trade receivables by geographical segments

Expense relating to short-term leases and low value assets

torthe yepr endeo

3l March ?o19

359.88

52.30

4L2,t8

Within lndia

Outside India

8.19

8.19

All other assets (other than trade receivables) used in the Company's business are located in lndia and are used to cater to both the

categories of customers (within lndia and outside lndia), accordingly the total cost incurred during the year to acquire tangible and

intangible fixed assets has not been disclosed.

31 Leases

Except as specified below, the Company has consistently applied the accounting policies to all periods presented in this financial

statements. The Company has applied lnd AS 116 with the date of initial application of 1 April, 2019. As a result, the Company has

changed its accounting policy for lease contracts.

Company as lessee

The Company during the year has leased a premise on finance lease. This lease have a term of 11 months with a lock-in period of 3

months.

Amount recognized in statement of profit and loss

As at
gt lvlarctt ibia

ror the yeir ended

31 March 2020

0.64

r'*,'{r-ff"ffi
,...\

-r{



lntermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited
(All amount are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020

Financial instruments . fair value measurement

Accounting classifications and fair values

Prrtlculars As at:31Mar.h 2020 As at ll:March 2019 As at r A$ill 1018

clryJnl
amodrl

FaIr valua (trrylnS
emounl

Filr:ual{ra C?frying Cltr,o--.Ufi Falrtilile

Flnanclal assets measured at amortized Gost:

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Loans

Other financial assets

- Accrued interest

lnvestments in debentures or bonds

Financial assets measured at FVTPI-:

lnvestment in mutual fund units

16.58

492.76

100.00

1.41

o.76

16.58

492.76

100.00

1.47

o.76

8.19

r7.47

66.79

r.27

2.59

475.O0

8.19

77.47

66.79

7.27

2.59

531.45

23.83

101.86

1.53

10.00

483.00

23.83

101.85

1.53

,o.oo

520.12

Total 611.51 611.51 571.25 627.70 620.22 657.34

Flnanclal liabilities measured at amortlzed cost:

Trade payables

Other fi nancial liabilities

49.94

5.55

49.94

6.65

47.57

22.4O

47.57

22.4O

45.97

11.89

45.97

11.89

Total 56.59 56.59 70.31 70.3L 57.86 57.86

(a)

The fair value of deposit with open ended mutual fund schemes classified as level 1 in the fair value hierarchy. The value is measured using Net Asset Value (NAV)

as disclosed by the mutual fund house. The management assessed that carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, loans and
other financial assets and liabilities approximate their fair value largely due to the nature and short-term maturities of these instruments.

Falr value hierarchy

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: lnputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices).

Level 3: lnputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on obseruable market data (unobseruable inputs).

Flnanclal lnstruments - risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments; credit risk (refer note (b) below); liquidity risk (refer note (c) below); market
risk (refer note (d) below).

Risk management framework

The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the company's risk management framework. The Company's risk

management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and
adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities.

The Company's board oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy
of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures,

aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

credit risk

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent and bank balances is not significant as it majorly includes deposits with banks with high credit ratings assigned by

international and domestic credit rating agencies.

lnvestments primarily includes investments in mutual fund units, which are with registered fund houses and therefore risk of any loss is low.

Credit risk arise from possibility that customer may default on its obligation to make timely payments, resulting into financial loss. The maximum exposure to the
credit risk is primarily from trade receivables.

The credit risk is managed by the Company through credit term approvals, establishing the financial reliability of the customers taking into account the financial

conditlon, analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of account receivables. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. lndividual credit terms are

set accordingly by the Company's credit control department.

Expected credit loss (ECL) assessment for customers as at 1 Aprll 18, 31 March 2019 ard 3L March 2020

The Company allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade based on a variety of data that is determined to be predictive of the risk ot loss (including but not
limited to past payment history, security by way of deposits, audited financial statements, management accounts and cash flow projections) and applying

experienced credit judgment. The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and expected credit loss for trade receivables

(b)

i.\

\
,il

Pbitlc{rlar* As bt 3l Maiih.2020, A$at Sl lvtarch 2019 Asrt r$iill0L!,
a:: Gro$:

lmllnttmoufi

ProvBioi
,amounl

cr9,i3 il.irJ.ill
'::-amOt,nl

Piovjrion imorll Gro6$ darrylfi!

, F.mgP.flt

FroYhionamnnnt

Up to 180 days

More than 180 days

17.00

6.25

lo.42l
(6.2s)

9.05

1.49

(0.84)

(1.4s)

29.36

2.62

(s.s3)

l.2.62r.

23.25 t6.671 10.54 12.t3 31.98
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lntermetal Engineers (tndia) Private Limited
(All amount are in INRlakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020

32 Flnanciaf instruments - fair value m easurcment (Continued)

Cash and cash equival€nts

The Company holds cash and cash equivalents of Rs.492.76 lakhs at 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019: Rs. 17.41 lakhs and 1 April 2018: Rs. 101.86 lakhs). The cash
and cash equivalents are mainly held with banks. The Company considers that its cash and cash equivalents have low credit risk based on the external credlt ratings
of counterparties.

Liquidity dsk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time. The company's primary sources of liquidity are cash generated
from operations, The cash flows from operating activities are driven primarily by operating results and changes in the working capital requirements.

The Company believe that its liquidity position is adequate to fund the operating and investing needs and to provide with flexibility to respond to further changes in
the business environment.

Maturities of fi nancial llabilities

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices, which will affect the company's income or the
value of its holdings of financial instruments, The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while optimising the return.

Curr€ncy risk

Majority of the transactions entered into by the Company are denominated in lndian Rupees. Accordingly, the Company does not have any currency risk.

lnterest Iate rlsk

The Company's does not have any borrowings and accordingly does not have any interest rate rlsk.

Prlce rlsk

Mutual funds price risk sensitivity analysis
The Company's exposure to price risk arises from investments held by the company and classified in the balance sheet as fair value through profit or loss.

Partlculais ,16 at
201t

lncrease by 10% (31 March 2019: le/o,Ot April2OtAtTO%)

Decrease by 10% (3 7 March 2O79i 7O%, Ot April 2O78i 7Oo/"1

Capital management

The Company's objectives when managing capital is to safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide adequate returns to
the shareholders.

The Company does not have any borrowings and the entire capital comprises of equity.

(d)

ii)

trt,

52.01

(s2.01)

,Partlciilars Cafiylng
amount

Tota (Fl2 months 1i?yean 3:5yaai! >.5 yeir$

As at 31 March 2020

Trade payables

other financial liabilities

49.94

6.65

49.94

6.65

49.94

6.65

s6.59 56.s9 55.s9

rartiCulirc carryinG

amollrfl
Tota &-I2 mbnths lrl yeai 3-5 yean > 5yei1i.

As at 31 March 2019

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities

47.57

22.4O

47-51

22.4O

47.5t
22.80

70.3t 70.31 70-31

Padcul iC Carrylot
afio{nl

,Tota 01.'12 months t-Zyeari 3-5 yair! ,>5yglrJ

As at I April 2018

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities
45.97

11.89

45.97

11.89

45.97

11.89

57.86 57.86 57.86

ffi*@
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34

lntermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited

(All amount are in lNRlakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

First time adoption of lnd AS

As stated in Note 2.1, these are the company's first financial statements prepared in accordance with lnd AS. For the year

ended upto and including 31 March 2019, the Company had prepared its financial statements in accordance with Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, notified under Section 133 of the Act and other relevant provisions of the Act ('previous

GAAP').

The accounting policies set out in Note 3 have been applied in preparing these financial statements for the year ended 31

March 2020 including the comparative information for the year ended 31 March 2019 and the opening lnd AS balance sheet

on the date oftransition i.e. 1 April 2018.

ln preparing its lnd AS balance sheet as at 1 April 2018, and in presentin8 the comparative information for the year ended 31

March 2019, the Company has adjusted amounts reported previously in financial statements prepared In accordance with
previous GMP as detailed hereunder and accordingly the impact of such transition the Company's financial position, financial
performance and cash flows is listed hereunder.

ln preparing these financial statements, the Company has applied the below mentioned optional exemptions and mandatory
exceptions.

Optional exemptions availed:

lnd AS 101 allows first-time adopters certain optional exemptions from the retrospective application of certain requirements
under lnd AS for transition from the previous GAAP (IGAAP). The Company has availed the following:

Property, plant and equipment

ln accordance with lnd AS 101, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of its property, plant and

equipment recognised as at April 1, 2018 measured as per the previous GMP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost

of the property, plant and equipment except for freehold factory land and building which has been fair valued and considered

as deemed cost as per lnd AS 101 principles as on the date of transition.

Mandatory exceptions:

ln accordance with lnd AS 101, the Company has applied following mandatory exceptions for transition from the previous

GMP (GAAP):

(il Classification and measurement offinancial assets

ln accordance with lnd AS 101, the Company has determined the classification of financial assets based on facts and

circumstances that exist on the date oftransition. Measurement offinancial assets accounted at amortised cost has been done

retrospectively except where the same is impracticable.

(ii) Estimates

ln accordance with lnd AS 101, the Company's estimates are consistent with those made under previous GAAP and where
necessary, appropriate adjustments are made to carrying value as at the date of transition.

As per lnd AS 101, the Company is required to make certain estimates that were not required under previous GMP, which

should be made to reflect conditions that existed at the date of transition (for preparing opening lnd AS balance sheet) or at

the end ofthe comparative period (for presenting comparative information as per lnd AS).

Further estimates considered in preparation of the financial statements that were not required under the previous GMP are:

Fair valuation of financial instruments carried at FVTPL and/or FVOCI; impairment of financial assets based on the expected

credit loss model; and determination of the discounted value for financial instruments carried at amortised cost.

(D

J' , ,llffi



lntermeta! Engineers (lndia) Private Limited
(All amount are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

34 First time adoption of lnd AS (Continuedl

C Reconciliations

(i) Reconciliation of balance sheet as at 1 April 2018 (date of transitionl

Parriiulars NotE Pr€viou!

6AAP1

Adjustrnenti tnd As

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Financial assets

- Other financial assets

Current assets

lnventories

Financial assets

- lnvestments
- Trade recelvables
- Cash and cash equivalents
- Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
- Loans

- Other financial assets
Current tax assets (net)
Other current assets

EQUITY & TIABILITIES

EQUITY

Equity share capital

Other equity

UABtUTtES

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Trade payables

Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises
Dues to others

- Other financial llabilities
Other current liabilities
Provisions

Current tax liabilities (net)

7

2

3

27.91 410.72

94.39

438.63

94.39

27.9t

22.40

493.00

31.98

796.25

1.53

ti.tz

505.11

aa 11

(8.1s)

(e4.3s)

(42.O71

533.02

22.40

530.12

23.83

101.86

1.53

sz.os
819.88 (t07.49) 7L2.39
847.79 397,62 .41

1.88

777.35 354.74

1.88

7.49
7t9.23

0.90

354.14

87.O2 87.93

t,073,37

0.90

45.97

24.O3

57.65

87.02

11.89

(s7.6s)

2.22

87.93

45.97

11.89

24.03

2.22
127.66 (43.s41 84,11
847.79 397,62

* The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to reconform to lnd AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this
note.

nil,
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lntermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited
(All amount are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

34 First time adoption of lnd AS (Continued)

{ii} Reconciliation of balance sheet as at 31 March 2019

* The previous GMP figures have been reclassified to reconform to lnd AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this
note.

''-i i

PC*!q$lqrs-. Note Fiiiious
CAAPI

Adjuttmehtr lnd AS

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Flnancial assets

- Other financial assets

Current assets

lnventories

Financial assets

- lnvestments

- Trade receivables

- Cash and cash equivalents

- Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents

- Loans

- Other financial assets

Current tax assets (net)

Other current assets

EQUITY & LIABITITIES

EQUITY

Equity share capital

Other equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities

- Trade payables

Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises
Dues to others

- Other financial liabilities

Other current liabilities

Provisions

Current tax liabilities (net)

2

1

3

27.97 393.94 427.85

27.9L

22.05

475.00

10.53

84.20

1.27

61.04

393.94

56.45

(2.33)

(66.7e)

66.79

2.59

8.82
(32.s1)

42L,85

22.Os

531.45

8.19

77.41

66.79

7.27

2.s9

8.82

28.53

554.08 33.02 687.10

681.99 426,96 1,108.9s

1.60

582.47 348.35

1.60

930.82

584.07

7.20

348.3s

88.45

972.42

89.6s

47.57

74.27

34.93

t.20

(34.s3)

2.30

88.45

22-..80

89.55

47.57

22.80

74.27

2.30

96.72 (e.831 86.88

681.99 426.96



lntermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited
(AIl amount are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

34 First time adoption of lnd AS (Continued)

(iii) Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2019

Partkularc Note PrevioG
GAAP*

Adjustfirent! lnu As

lncome

Revenue from operations

Other income

Total income
Expenses

Cost of material consumed

Employee benefits expense

Finance cost

Depreciation and amortization
Other expenses

Profit before tax

Tax expense:

Current tax

Tax adjustments relating to previous year

Deferred tax

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

3

472.74

37.46

(0.00)

2\.72
472.18

53.18

443.64

232.sO

778.37

0.29

L.43

25.63

2L.72

(7.s11

(0.00)

(0.2e)

16.90

4.37

455.36

224.99

728.37

18.33

30.00

388.22

55.42

10.28

0.73

0.30

L3,47

8.25

(0.4s)

1.42

401.69

63.67

9.83

0.73

1.72

11.31 0.97 L2.28

44.tL 7.28 51.39

44,LL 7,28

* The previous GMP figures have been reclassified to reconform to lnd AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this
note.

(iv) Reconciliation of total equity as at 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2018

PartiCul3rs As.e!

laplitroii
Totalequity as per previous GAAP

Adjustments:

Fair value gain on property, plant and equipment
Fair value gain on investments measured at FVTPL

Allowance for expected credit loss

Reversal of proposed dividend including dividend distribution tax
Minimum alternate tax credit entitlement reclassified to deferred tax
Deferred tax under lnd AS

under lnd AS

(v) Reconciliation of profit

7L9,23

470.72

37.72

(8.1s)

13.20

(77.77l.

187

584,O7

393.94

56.45

oLTrl

ffio" Year End€d

31 Mar.h 2019

Total profit as per previous GAAP

Adjustments:
lncrease in depreciation on account of fair valuation of property, plant and equipment

Fair value gain on investments measured at FVTPL

Movement in allowance for expected credit loss

Deferred tax under lnd AS

M.LI

(16.e0)

19.33

5.82

(0.e7)

,,".

.,, \;l
,,:l(ffi
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(vi)

lntermetal Engineers (tndia) Private Limited
(All amount are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

First time adoption of lnd AS (Continued)

Reconciliation of cash flow for the year ended 31 March 2018

There were no reconciliation items between cash flows prepared under lndian GAAP and those prepared under lnd AS.

Notes:

Under the previous GMP, property, plant and equipment were carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. On transition to lnd AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of its property, plant and
equipment recognised as at April 1, 2018 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of
the property, plant and equipment except for freehold factory land and building which has been fair valued and considered as

deemed cost as per lnd AS 101 principles as on the date of transition.

Underthe previous GAAP, investments In mutual funds were classified as long-term investments or current investments based
on the intended holding period and realisability. Long-term investments were carried at cost less provision for other than
temporary decline in the value of such investments. Current investments were carried at lower of cost and fair value. Under lnd
AS, these investments are required to be measured at fair value. The resulting fair value changes of these investments have
been recognised in statement of profit and loss as at the date of transition and subsequently in the retained earnings for year
ended 31 March 2018.

Under previous GAAP, deferred taxes were recognised for the tax effect of timing differences between accounting profit and
taxable proflt for the year using the income statement approach. Under lnd AS, deferred taxes are recognised using the balance
sheet approach for future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying value of assets and liabilities and
their respective tax bases. The above difference, together with the consequential tax impact of the other lnd AS transitional
adiustments lead to temporary differences. Deferred tax adjustments are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in retained earnings or through profit or loss. For transactions and other events recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity), related tax effects are also recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively).

,tt,ffi
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lntermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited
(All amount are in INRlakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

35 Earnings per share

table sets forth the of basic and dilutive earnings per share:

,lartlcuhh

Net profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders

Weighted average number of shares

Earnings per share, basic and diluted (Rupees)

Note: Basic and diluted earnin$ per share during the current
outstanding as at the year end.

51.39

1,653

3,r08.22

year are same as the Company has no potentially dilutive equity shares

Foi gre:year ChdCd
' -31 fdr-iah 20[9

Partitufarc

No. of equity shares at the beginning of the year

Add: Shares issued duringthe year

Less: Shares bought back during the year

No. of equity shares at the end ofthe year

Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs 100 each used for calculation of basic and
diluted earnings per share

,Fo1pe yeflindad
' 31 Marbh1019

1,,875

12781-

2,153

1,653

36 Contingent liabilities and commitments

Contingent liabilities:
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts: Nil (Previous year: Nil)

Commitments:

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for: Nil (Previous year: Nil)

Payment to Auditors

Particurare For therear Bnded

3t Maich Z0I9

For statutory audit

For limited r€view

For tax audit

For other matters

Reimbursement of expenses

0.30

Event after reporting date

Estimation uncertainty relatinB to the global health pandemic on COVTD-19

The Company has evaluated the possible impact of this pandemic on the business operations and the financial position of the Company
and based on its initial assessment, believes that there is no significant impact on the financial statements ofthe Company, as at and for
the year ended 31 March 2020. However, the impact assessment of COVID-19 is an on-going process given the uncertainties associated
with its nature and duration. Given the uncertainty because of COVID-19, the final impact on the Company's operations may be different
from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements and the Company will continue to closely monitor any material
changes resulting from the future economic conditions and future uncertainty, if any.

37

38

lr, )

Reconciliation of shares used in computing earnings per share

The
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Intermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited
(All amount are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

39 Related party disclosure

Names of related parties and description of relationship

Related parties where control exists

Mr. Prakash Koppar, individuals having significant influence over the Company (upto 17.05.2019)

Orient Refractories Limited, Holding Company (w.e.f. 18.05.2019)

i)

A

iil

Key Manaterial Personnel (KMP);

Mr. Prakash Koppar

Mr. Anand Koppar

Mr. Vijay Sharma

Mr. Parmod Sagar

Mr. Sanjeev Bhardwaj

As per our report of even date

For Saini Pati Shah & Co LtP

(Jormerly known os S G J & CO)

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 137904WW100522

Pk
Som Saini

Partner

: Executive director (upto 17.05.2019)

: Executive director (upto 17.05.2019)

: Non-executive director (w.e.f. 18.05.2019)

: Non-executive director (w.e.f. 18.05.2019)

: Company secretary (w.e.f. 30.10.2019)

Enterprises over which key management personnel or their relatives exercise significant influence
Prakash V. Koppar HUF (upto 17.05.2019)

Related parties transactions entered into by the company for the year ended 31 March 2020

P,rticulrti,rii Fortheyearend
,.. 3Iltdarrh20!9

Sales

Orient Refractories Limited I
* Amount disclosed is inclusive of goods and seruice tax of
Rs 0.06 lakhs (Previous year; Rs Nil)

Compensation of key management personnel
(i) Director remuneration

- Mr. Prakash Koppar

- Mr. Anand Koppar

(ii) Director sitting fees

- Mr. VUay Sharma

Loans repaid

Prakash V. Koppar HUF

Related party balances

Amounts due to or due from related parties are as follows:

40 Previous year's figures

Previous year's figures have been regrouped / restated / reclassified, wherever necessary to confirm to the current year's presentation.

iiu

For and on behalf of the board of directors
lntermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited

Company Secretary

ACS:10805

.*UNqJry
Vilay Sharma

Director

DIN:00880113

Place: Gurugram

Date: 25 June 2020

'll

8.97

4.50

0.75

0.19

,rnl*Iru ,!' ,,;;Slt
Sl March 202{

i,:1:':.-,, 1r",
rl flril[h.roig

riiL F.qtl
OI Ap1-jt 20X8;

Trade receivables

Orient Refractories Limited

Loans

Prakash V. Koppar HUF

0. 19

0.19 0.19

UD:tv t-
DIN:06500871Membership No.093079

.>oo93o 1'1 trAnA Ax6 I 3 +
Place: Mumbai

Date: 25 June 2020 ffi




